

**VIRGINIA BOARD OF NURSING
EDUCATION INFORMAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
MINUTES
September 13, 2016**

**TIME AND
PLACE:**

The meeting of the Education Informal Conference Committee was convened at 10:02 a.m. in Suite 201, Department of Health Professions 9960 Mayland Drive, Second Floor, Board Room 3, Henrico, Virginia.

**MEMBERS
PRESENT:**

Joyce A. Hahn, Ph.D., RN, NEA-BC, FNAP, Chair
Mark Monson, Citizen Member

**STAFF
PRESENT:**

Jodi P. Power, RN, JD, Deputy Executive Director
Paula B. Saxby, RN, Ph.D., Deputy Executive Director
Beth Yates, Administrative Assistant

CONFERENCES SCHEDULED:

REGISTERED NURSING, PRACTICAL NURSING, AND NURSE AIDE EDUCATION PROGRAMS

Nursing Program Updates

Approval to Operate:

Medical Learning Center Inc., PN Program, Fairfax - US28110500

Dr. Saxby explained the program was approved as of August 5, 2016 as they met the requirements under the previous regulations that were in place when the program originally applied in January 2015.

Action: Recommend to accept as information.

Continued Approval Survey Visits have been conducted on the following programs:

**Southside Virginia Community College, PN Program, Alberta Campus, Alberta
– US28101000**

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information. Full approval is continued.

**Southside Virginia Community College, PN Program, South Boston Campus,
South Boston – US28101200**

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information. Full approval is continued.

Voluntary Closure of Nursing Education Programs

The following programs have submitted documentation of voluntary closure:

Virginia State University, ADN Program, Petersburg – US28408300

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Southside Virginia Community College, PN Program, Farmville – US28106400

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Southside Virginia Community College, PN Program, Chase City – US28104900

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Programs Not Accepting Admissions:

Giles County Technical Center, PN Program, Pearisburg – US28100500

The Board was notified that the school is unable to accept student admission in the fall of 2016 due to lack of qualified faculty.

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Petersburg Public Schools, PN Program, Petersburg – US28109400

The Board was notified that the school is unable to accept student admission in the fall of 2016 due to lack of qualified faculty.

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Review of Board of Nursing Guidance Documents:

• **Guidance Documents Revisions**

- Guidance Document 90-21 Clinical Learning Experience in Nursing Education Programs, adopted July 17, 2012

Action: Recommend to accept the revised Guidance Document 90-21 with edits (Enclosed).

- Staff presented a draft document titled “Things to Consider When Choosing a Nursing Education Program”

Action: Recommend to approve and post to the web site with edits (Enclosed).

Public Comment

There was no public comment.

Current Issues and Discussion

- Pre-licensure Distance Education Programs and Clinical Learning Experiences

Action: Recommend to send an email to the education programs to inquire if their students have been denied access to a clinical site because a program from another state is using that site, and table discussion until further information has been received from the programs and legal counsel.

- Applications to establish nursing education programs.

Dr. Saxby explained that there are 23 pending applications for new programs. Any application not completed by November 2016 will expire pursuant to the new regulations.

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

- Implementation of Regulations
 - 80% clinical in Virginia
 - Clinical sites greater than 50 miles from campus

All nursing education programs approved by the Board of Nursing are required to be in compliance with regulations that became effective November 18, 2015. This includes requiring Board approval for nursing programs who have less than 80% of their clinical experience in Virginia and/or if their clinical experiences are more than 50 miles from campus.

Action: Recommend to accept the report as information.

Request for Continued Exception

- UVA requested continued exception for 2 clinical faculty

Action: Dr. Hahn approved the requests for continued faculty exceptions for the University of Virginia.

Voluntary Closure of ITT Technical Institute:

Dr. Saxby presented information regarding the recent closure of ITT Technical Institute and the nursing student status at the Norfolk and Salem locations. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) has information for students on their website at www.schev.edu.

Meeting adjourned at 12:19 p.m.

Paula B. Saxby, R.N., Ph.D.

Paula B. Saxby, R.N., Ph.D.
Deputy Executive Director

Virginia Board of Nursing

Guidance on Clinical Learning Experiences

Introduction/Background

This document provides information and guidance to schools of nursing (both PN and RN) in Virginia on the use of clinical learning experiences in the fulfillment of the clinical hour requirements for nursing education programs. As of April 2008, all RN nursing education programs approved in Virginia shall provide a minimum of 500 hours of direct client care supervised by qualified faculty, and all PN nursing education programs approved in Virginia shall provide a minimum of 400 hours of direct client care supervised by qualified faculty [~~18 VAC 90-20-120.E~~]. [18 VAC 90-20-121.A]. These supervised clinical hours shall encompass the attainment and maintenance of physical and mental health and the prevention of illness for individuals and groups throughout the life cycle and in a variety of settings. The clinical settings include acute, non-acute, community based, and long term care clinical settings; with experiences to include adult medical/surgical nursing, geriatric nursing, maternal/infant (obstetrics, gynecology, neonatal) nursing, mental health/psychiatric nursing, nursing fundamentals, and pediatric nursing. This document will outline the essential components and major concepts that are necessary when using clinical learning experiences, including roles and expectations for faculty, preceptors, nursing students, and clinical facilities. (Please see Guidance Document # 90-24 for additional requirements for the Use of Simulation in Lieu of Direct Client Care Clinical Learning Experiences, and ~~Guidance Document # 90-28 for Clinical Hours for LPN to pre-licensure RN Transition/Bridge Programs~~).

Definitions of Terms

Nursing Faculty - a Registered Nurse who teaches the practice of nursing in nursing education programs meeting the criteria as defined in Virginia Board of Nursing Regulations Governing the Practice of Nursing [18VAC90-20-90]. ~~18VAC90-20-95; 18VAC90-20-96~~). Nursing faculty member maintains the ultimate responsibility for the student's learning in the clinical setting. The nursing faculty member may directly supervise the students in the clinical area, not to exceed a one to ten ratio (faculty/student) *and the faculty shall be on site solely to supervise students.*

Clinical Preceptor- A licensed nurse, licensed at or above the level for which the student is preparing. The clinical preceptor is a qualified licensed healthcare professional employed by the facility in which the clinical experience occurs and is **present** with the student during the student's clinical experience. He/She agrees to serve as a role model, resource person, and ~~supervisor of the student's clinical experience~~ *is present with the nursing student in that setting providing clinical supervision.*

Nursing Student- An individual enrolled in an approved nursing education program. The nursing student may perform tasks that would constitute the practice of nursing [§ 54.1-3001.(2)]. The student is self-directed; responsible to and supervised by the nursing faculty member/clinical preceptor to achieve the clinical objectives of the specific course and nursing education program.

Preceptorship- A clinical experience in which a nursing student is participating in the provision of care for one or more clients and a nursing faculty member is **not** providing direct supervision on site. A preceptorship agreement is required when nursing faculty are not providing direct supervision, *as well as written objectives and an orientation program for faculty, preceptors, and students [18 VAC 90-20-122.C.D.E.F.&G].*

Clinical Setting – *Any location in which the clinical practice of nursing occurs as specified in an agreement between the cooperating agency and the school of nursing.*

Cooperating Agency – *Any location in which the clinical practice of nursing or observational experience occurs to provide learning experiences for a nursing education program as specified in a written agreement between the cooperating agency (clinical facility) and the school of nursing.*

Statute and Regulations

§54.1-3001(2) of the Code of Virginia allows a nursing student, while enrolled in an approved nursing program, to perform tasks that would constitute the practice of nursing. The student shall be responsible and accountable for the safe performance of those direct patient care tasks to which he has been assigned. This statute requires that the nursing education program be approved, and as such, has requirements in regulation for the supervision of students by qualified faculty.

If the nursing education program chooses to provide clinical experiences outside of Virginia, the program is responsible for obtaining the permission or approval from that entity outside of Virginia (ie – other States or the District of Columbia, or foreign country).

Regulation 18 VAC 90-20-90. Faculty *(see regulation for additional requirements by type of program)*

A. Qualification.

1. ~~Every member of the nursing faculty, including the program director, shall hold a current unencumbered license as a registered nurse or a multistate privilege to practice nursing in Virginia. Persons providing instruction in topics other than nursing shall not be required to hold a license as a registered nurse.~~ license or multistate licensure privilege to practice nursing in Virginia as a registered nurse without any disciplinary action that currently restricts practice and have at least two years of direct client care experience as a registered nurse prior to employment by the program. Persons providing instruction in topics other than nursing shall not be required to hold a license as a registered nurse.
2. Every member of a nursing faculty supervising the clinical practice of students shall meet the licensure requirements of the jurisdiction in which that practice occurs. *Faculty shall provide evidence of education or experience in the specialty area in which they supervise students' clinical experience for quality and safety. Prior to supervision of students, the faculty providing supervision shall have completed a clinical orientation to the site in which supervision is being provided.*
3. The program director and each member of the nursing faculty shall maintain documentation of professional competence through such activities as nursing practice, continuing education programs, conferences, workshops, seminars, academic courses, research projects and professional writing. *Documentation of annual professional*

development shall be maintained in employee files for the director and each faculty member until the next survey visit and shall be available for board review.

B. Number.

1. The number of faculty shall be sufficient to prepare the students to achieve the objectives of the educational program and to ensure safety for patients to whom students provide care.
2. When students are giving direct care to patients, the ratio of students to faculty shall not exceed ten (10) students to one (1) faculty member, and the faculty shall be on site solely to supervise students.
3. When preceptors are utilized for specified learning experiences in clinical settings, the faculty member may supervise up to fifteen (15) students.

Regulation ~~18 VAC 90-20-95~~. 18 VAC 90-20-122.C-G. Preceptorships. (Excerpts related to clinical learning)

C. Faculty members or preceptors providing on-site supervision in the clinical care of clients shall be responsible and accountable for the assignment of clients and tasks based on their assessment and evaluation of the student's clinical knowledge and skills. Supervisors shall also monitor clinical performance and intervene if necessary for the safety and protection of the clients.

~~A.~~ *D. Clinical preceptors may be used to augment the faculty and enhance the clinical learning experience. Faculty shall be responsible for the designation of a preceptor for each student and shall communicate such assignment with the preceptor. A preceptor may not further delegate the duties of the preceptorship.*

~~B.~~ *E. Preceptors shall provide to the nursing education program evidence of competence to supervise students' clinical learning experience for quality and safety in each specialty area where they supervise students. The clinical preceptor shall be licensed at or above the level for which the student is preparing.*

F.2. When preceptors are utilized for specific learning experiences in clinical settings, the faculty may supervise up to 15 students. In utilizing preceptors to supervise students in the clinical setting, the ratio shall not exceed two students to one preceptor at any given time. During the period in which students are in the clinical setting with a preceptor, the faculty member shall be available for communication and consultation with the preceptor.

~~C.~~ *When giving direct care to patients, students shall be supervised by faculty or preceptors as designated by faculty. In utilizing preceptors to supervise students, the ratio shall not exceed two students to one preceptor at any given time.*

~~D.~~ *Faculty shall be responsible for the designation of a preceptor for each student and shall communicate such assignment with the preceptor. A preceptor may not further delegate the duties of the preceptorship.*

~~E.~~ *Preceptorships shall include:* *G. Prior to beginning any preceptorship, the following shall be required:*

1. Written objectives, methodology, and evaluation procedures for a specified period of time to include the dates of each experience;
2. An orientation program for faculty, preceptors, and students;

3. ~~The A skills checklist detailing the~~ performance of skills for which the student has had faculty-supervised clinical and didactic preparation; and
4. The overall coordination by faculty who assume ultimate responsibility for implementation, periodic monitoring, and evaluation.

Regulation ~~18 VAC 90-20-96.~~ 18 VAC 90-20-122 Clinical practice of students.

- A. In accordance with §54.1-3001 of the Code of Virginia, a nursing student, while enrolled in an approved nursing program, may perform tasks that would constitute the practice of nursing. The student shall be responsible and accountable for the safe performance of those direct patient care tasks to which he has been assigned.
- B. Faculty shall be responsible for ensuring that students perform only skills or services in direct client care for which they have received instruction and have been found proficient by the instructor. Skills checklists shall be maintained for each student.
- C. Faculty members or preceptors providing supervision in the clinical care of patients shall be responsible and accountable for the assignment of patients and tasks based on their assessment and evaluation of the student's clinical knowledge and skills. Supervisors shall also monitor clinical performance and intervene if necessary for the safety and protection of the patients *clients*.

Regulation ~~18 VAC 90-20-130.~~ 18 VAC 90-20-110. Resources, facilities, publications and services. (Excerpts related to clinical learning)

- ~~A. Periodic evaluations of resources, facilities and services shall be conducted by the administration, faculty, students and graduates of the nursing education program.~~
- ~~B. Secretarial and other support services shall be provided.~~
- ~~C. Classrooms, conference rooms, laboratories, clinical facilities and offices shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of the nursing education program and the needs of the students, faculty, administration and staff.~~
- ~~D. The program shall have learning resources that are current, pertinent and accessible to students and faculty, and sufficient to meet the needs of the students and faculty.~~
- ~~E. Written agreements with cooperating agencies shall be developed, maintained and periodically reviewed. The agreement shall:~~
 - ~~1. Ensure full control of student education by the faculty of the nursing education program, including the selection and supervision of learning experiences.~~
 - ~~2. Provide that faculty members or preceptors be present in the clinical setting when students are assigned for direct patient care.~~
 - ~~3. Provide for cooperative planning with designated agency personnel to ensure safe patient care.~~
 - ~~4. Provide that faculty be available to students and preceptors while students are involved in preceptorship experiences.~~
- ~~F. Any observational experiences shall be planned in cooperation with the agency involved to meet stated course objectives.~~
- ~~G. Cooperating agencies shall be approved by the appropriate accreditation, evaluation or licensing bodies, if such exist.~~

- A. Classrooms, conference rooms, laboratories, clinical facilities, and offices shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of the nursing education program and the needs of the*

- students, faculty, administration, and staff and shall include private areas for faculty-student conferences. Instructional technology and equipment needed for simulating client care.*
- B. The program shall have learning resources that are current, pertinent and accessible to students and faculty, and sufficient to meet the needs of the students and faculty.
- C. *9. Curriculum plan to include course progression from admission to graduation, the name of each course, theory hours, skills lab hours, simulation hours (if used in lieu of direct client care hours) and clinical hours.*
- D. *Administrative support services shall be provided.*
- E. *There shall be written agreements with cooperating agencies that:*
1. *Ensure full control of student education by the faculty of the nursing education program, including the selection and supervision of learning experiences to include the dismissal of students from the clinical site if client safety is or may be compromised by the acts of the student;*
 2. *Provide that faculty members or preceptors are present in the clinical setting when students are providing direct client care;*
 3. *Provide for cooperative planning with designated agency personnel to ensure safe client care;*
 4. *Provide that faculty be readily available to students and preceptors while students are involved in preceptorship experiences; and*
 5. *State the number of students allowed on each nursing unit from the nursing education program.*
- F. *Cooperating agencies shall be approved by the appropriate accreditation, evaluation, or licensing bodies, if such exist.*

Key Components

The Board of Nursing envisions the nursing faculty member and clinical preceptor functioning in a role which enhances the nursing students' learning experiences. Nursing faculty members or clinical preceptors providing supervision in the clinical care of patients/*clients* shall be responsible and accountable for the assignment of *patients care* and tasks based on their assessment and evaluation of the student's clinical knowledge and skills.

Direct Care Clinical Components:

Partnerships between nursing education programs and clinical agencies are vital for providing nursing students the opportunity to practice nursing during their clinical experiences within a variety of settings with expert resources. Written agreements between the nursing education program and the cooperating agency shall be developed, maintained, and periodically reviewed. The agreement shall meet the criteria as defined in Virginia Board of Nursing Regulations Governing the Practice of Nursing (~~18VAC90-20-130.E~~) (as outlined in the above section) ***18 VAC 90-20-110.E***

When supervising nursing students giving direct care to clients, the ratio of students to faculty shall not exceed ten (10) students to one (1) faculty member, and the nursing faculty member shall be on site solely to supervise students in the clinical setting. Supervising faculty shall

monitor the student's clinical performance and intervene if necessary for the safety and protection of the patients.

Preceptorship Components:

Precepted clinical experiences are planned experiences for a specific nursing course. The nursing faculty member becomes the facilitator of the total preceptor experience by planning, counseling, periodic monitoring, and evaluating the preceptorship throughout its entirety. Nursing faculty members are responsible for the designation of a clinical preceptor for each student and will communicate such assignment with the clinical preceptor in collaboration with the clinical facility. When nursing faculty are not on site to supervise students, clinical preceptors may be utilized for specific learning experiences in the clinical setting. During these occasions, the faculty member may supervise up to 15 students. Supervising preceptors shall monitor the student's clinical performance and intervene if necessary for the safety and protection of the patients.

Preceptorships shall include:

1. Written objectives, methodology, and evaluation procedures for a specified period of time;
2. An orientation program for faculty, preceptors, and students;
3. The performance of skills for which the student has had faculty-supervised clinical and didactic preparation.
4. Written agreements between the nursing education program and the affiliating agency shall be developed, maintained, and periodically reviewed. The agreement shall meet the criteria as defined in Virginia Board of Nursing Regulations Governing the Practice of Nursing (~~18VAC90-20-130.E.~~) *18 VAC 90-20-110.E*

Program/Faculty Responsibilities

1. Ensure that nursing faculty members and clinical preceptors meet qualifications as outlined in ~~18VAC90-20-90 and 18VAC90-20-95.~~ *18 VAC 90-20-122*
2. Ensure that there are written agreements which delineate the functions and responsibilities of the cooperating agency, clinical preceptor, and nursing program.
3. Ensure that the written agreements with cooperating agencies and the nursing education program are reviewed, signed, and current.
4. Ensure that clinical experiences using clinical preceptors occur only after the student has received applicable theory and clinical skills lab experiences necessary to safely provide care to clients, as appropriate.
5. Provide the clinical preceptor an orientation to the philosophy, curriculum, course, and clinical objectives of the nursing education program and course. Discuss student expectations, skills performance, and methods of evaluation.
6. Assume overall responsibility for teaching and evaluation of the nursing student.
7. Ensure student compliance with standards *required by the facility/organization, including, but not limited to:* ~~an~~ immunization, screening, OSHA standards, CPR, and current liability insurance coverage, *and other requirements* as appropriate.
8. Selects clinical preceptor for nursing student.
9. Meets periodically with clinical preceptor and nursing student to determine student progress.

10. Be readily available via telephone for consultation when students are in the clinical area. The designated nursing faculty member shall be available to provide assistance or supervision of the student at the clinical site, should a problem arise that cannot be resolved by telephone.

Preceptor Responsibilities

1. Participate in a preceptor orientation facilitated by the nursing education program.
2. Facilitate clinical learning experiences for no more than two nursing students at a time.
3. Orient nursing student(s) to the clinical agency and its policies and procedures.
4. Guide and supervise the student's performance of skills and other nursing activities to ensure patient safety.
5. Provide feedback to the nursing faculty member, assigned to the student, regarding clinical experience for student and suggestions for program development.
6. Provide the nursing student with feedback on his/her progress, based on the clinical preceptor's observation of clinical performance, assessment of achievement of clinical competencies, and patient care documentation.
7. Retain ultimate responsibility for the care of the *patients/clients*. Fulfill nursing duties as determined by the clinical agency's policies and procedures.
8. A preceptor may not further delegate the duties of the preceptorship.
9. Contact nursing faculty member by telephone if faculty assistance is necessary.

Agency Responsibilities

Written agreements between the nursing program and cooperating agency (clinical facility) shall be developed, maintained and periodically reviewed *for all clinical experiences, including observation, community, and global experiences*. In addition to the written agreement, the cooperating agency (clinical facility) shall:

1. Ensure full control of student education by the **faculty** of the nursing education program, including the selection and supervision of learning experiences.
2. Ensure that the nursing education program is providing appropriate clinical supervision to the students, either by faculty or clinical preceptors, and is not relying on the cooperating agency (clinical facility) staff to provide supervision to the students.
3. Retain ultimate responsibility for the care of *patients/clients*.
4. Retain responsibility for the preceptor's salary, benefits, and liability.
5. Arrange for the Preceptor and nursing student to coordinate the times for the precepted clinical experience.

Student Responsibilities

1. Demonstrate self direction by actively seeking learning experiences and being prepared to accomplish the learning objectives for the clinical experience.
2. Maintain accountability for safe performance of those direct client care tasks to which the student has been assigned.
3. Prepare for each clinical experience as needed.
4. Provide safe nursing care at the highest level of the student's knowledge. Participate in direct client care as assigned by the clinical preceptor.
5. Respect the confidential nature of all information obtained during the clinical experience.

6. Contact nursing faculty by telephone if faculty assistance is necessary.
7. Maintain open communications with the preceptor and faculty.

Expectations for Using Preceptors in Nursing Education Programs

Preceptors may be used for supervision of nursing students only after students have demonstrated knowledge and skills that are required for the clinical situation. Nursing students must have successfully completed foundational nursing concepts, such as: anatomy and physiology, nutrition, growth and development, basic nursing care, ADLs, pharmacology, nursing process, promotion of a safe client environment, cultural values, physical assessment, and patient education, prior to being assigned to a clinical preceptor. Medication administration may be supervised by the clinical preceptor after the student has satisfactorily completed initial instruction and clinical skills practice with nursing faculty supervision.

When the preceptorship is provided in a setting in which the student is employed, the nursing faculty member must ensure that both the nursing student and clinical preceptor understand the difference in the student's role during the preceptorship experience versus their role while employed at the clinical agency.

When students are performing direct patient care, on site supervision of students by a nursing faculty member or preceptor is required at all times. Examples of types of clinical settings include, but are not limited to: physician offices, school nurse clinics and schools, ambulatory care settings, and in-patient facilities. These experiences can be counted toward the required supervised direct care clinical hours as defined in ~~18 VAC 90-20-120.E.~~ *18 VAC 90-20-121.A*

Exceptions to Direct, On-Site Supervision in Nursing Education Programs

The exceptions to direct, on-site supervision, are in the following areas:

1. The clinical experience is strictly observational.
 - a. The purpose of an observational experience is to allow the student to observe specialized or advanced areas of clinical care. In an observational experience, nursing students do not provide direct (hands-on) care.
 - b. Nursing students may be assigned at a clinical site for observational experiences without the supervision of a clinical preceptor, provided that such experiences meet the learning objectives as clearly defined. Nursing faculty remain responsible for the supervision of students involved in observational experiences (absent a preceptor) within the 10 to 1, student to faculty ratio. Examples of observational experiences include, but are not limited to: attendance at AA meetings, support groups, or birthing classes; and "shadowing" experiences where the student will observe a nurse perform his/her nursing care and provide no assistance.
 - c. Observational clinical hours do not count toward the required supervised direct client care hours as defined in ~~18VAC90-20-120.E.~~ *18 VAC 90-20-121.A*
 - d. *Observational objectives shall be available to students, the clinical unit, and the board.*
2. The clinical experience is a community health experience meeting the following criteria:

- a. The nursing students have successfully completed foundational nursing concepts, as identified above, and basic medical-surgical nursing concepts prior to being assigned to a community based clinical experience.
- b. There are established clinical objectives and an appropriate orientation to the setting.
- c. The nursing care provided by the nursing student is limited to basic screening and data collection, health teaching, and assisting with low-risk, non-invasive nursing care (height/weight; vital signs, assessments, basic activities of daily living (ADLs)).
- d. The nursing faculty member verifies the student's competency in the care and/or other skills required for the clinical setting prior to the rotation.
- e. The supervising nursing faculty member meets with the nursing students regularly to evaluate their progress toward meeting the objectives.
- f. The supervising nursing faculty member is readily available by telephone to provide direct assistance, supervision, and evaluation as needed during the rotation.

Examples of community health experiences may include, but not limited to: Boys and Girls Club, Home Health, Health Department, Community Services Board, Child Care Centers, and Adult Day Care Centers. These experiences can be counted toward the required supervised direct care clinical hours as defined in ~~18 VAC90-20-120.E. 18 VAC 90-20-121.A~~

3. The experience is a global/international community health experience meeting the following criteria:
 - a. The nursing students have successfully completed foundational nursing concepts, as identified above, and basic medical-surgical nursing concepts prior to being assigned to a community based clinical experience.
 - b. There are established clinical objectives and an appropriate orientation to the setting.
 - c. The nursing care provided by the nursing student is limited to basic screening and data collection, health teaching, and assisting with low-risk nursing care non-invasive: height/weight; vital signs, assessments, basic activities of daily living (ADLs), *and in accordance with the standards, guidelines and laws of the global location.*
 - d. The nursing faculty member verifies the student's competency in the care and/or other skills required for the clinical setting prior to the rotation.
 - e. The supervising nursing faculty member meets with the nursing students regularly to evaluate their progress toward meeting the objectives.
 - f. The supervising nursing faculty member is readily available by telephone to provide direct assistance, supervision, and evaluation as needed during the rotation.
 - g. *Global/international community health experiences must have Board approval pursuant to 18 VAC 90-20-40.4.e.*

Examples of global/international clinical experiences may include, but not limited to: Overseas Health Mission trips, Overseas Interdisciplinary Healthcare Team trips, Operation Smile, and Medishare.

These experiences can be counted toward the required supervised direct care clinical hours as defined in ~~18 VAC 90-20-120.E.~~ *18 VAC 90-20-121.A.*

Things to Consider When Choosing a Nursing Education Program

Nursing is a rewarding and challenging career with a variety of employment opportunities. We are glad you are interested in becoming a nurse. It is in your best interest to be a proactive consumer. Choosing the nursing program that fits your needs and one that will prepare you to achieve your career goals may take some time. As you are comparing different nursing programs we suggest you ask questions and find the answers before enrolling in any program.

The Virginia Board of Nursing regulates pre-licensure nursing education programs. The regulations are available on the Board of Nursing website at

https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/nursing/nursing_laws_regs.htm.

Things to consider when choosing the nursing education program that is best for you:

1. Are you looking for a baccalaureate degree registered nursing program, an associate degree nursing program or a practical nursing program? Make sure the program you choose is the program that will prepare you for your career goals. A list of nursing education programs approved to operate in Virginia and their current status is available on the Virginia Board of Nursing website. If you are considering practical nursing (PN), call the public school systems: Many of them offer their PN program to the adult learner.
https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/nursing/nursing_edprogs.htm
2. Does the nursing program you are considering have nursing accreditation? The Virginia Board of Nursing approves nursing programs to operate in the Commonwealth. Nursing program accreditation is a volunteer, peer review process. Learn more about nursing approval and nursing accreditation at: <https://www.ncsbn.org/665.htm>.
3. What are the NCLEX pass rates for the program? The NCLEX is the licensure exam that demonstrates entry into practice competence. Passing the NCLEX is a requirement for licensure in all 50 States and the District of Columbia. The NCLEX pass rates for the current year and the past 5 years are available on the Board of Nursing website for all nursing programs approved to operate in Virginia.
https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/nursing/nursing_edprogs.htm
Nursing programs with an NCLEX pass rate of 80% or above meet the Board's requirements for the NCLEX exam. Need more information about NCLEX? Information about NCLEX testing can be found on the National Council of State Boards of Nursing website.
<https://www.ncsbn.org/index.htm>
4. Where will clinical learning experiences occur? Make sure to ask where these experiences will occur. This is an important piece of your education! The Board requires at least 400 hours of direct client care clinical experiences for practical nursing programs and 500 hours of direct client care experiences for RN programs. In addition, the clinical experiences must include the attainment and maintenance of physical and mental health and the prevention of illness for

individuals and groups throughout the life cycle and in a variety of acute, nonacute, community-based, and long term care clinical settings and experiences to include adult medical/surgical nursing, geriatric nursing, maternal/infant nursing, mental health nursing, nursing fundamentals, and pediatric nursing.. Do the experiences prepare you for your work place employment goal? Think about the distance you will have to travel to the various sites. Don't forget to consider travel time.

5. Nursing is a practice profession and your education will require classroom, skills lab, and clinical experiences. While there is no completely on line nursing programs, some online general education classes may be available.
6. Make sure to find out about tuition, fees and other expenses. Nursing education will most likely require the purchase of additional equipment, uniforms, and other resources. Be sure to ask!
7. Make sure to ask about the use of a comprehensive/high stakes exam requiring a minimum passing score that will determine graduation. Some programs are implementing these policies. Know beforehand! The Virginia Board of Nursing does not regulate the use of a comprehensive exam. Additional information and the National League for Nursing's position statement and Fair Testing Guidelines regarding the use of a high stakes exam can be found at:
<http://www.nln.org/advocacy-public-policy/issues/high-stakes-testing>
8. Know the policies of the nursing program as well as the parent institution. For example, nursing programs will frequently have a different attendance policy than the parent institution. Read the nursing program handbook as well as the college catalog.
9. Many registered nursing programs offer advanced placement for licensed practical nurses (LPN). Ask if this is an option, even if the program is not identified as an LPN to RN program. A complete listed of programs approved to operate in Virginia can be found on the VA BON website https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/nursing/nursing_edprogs.htm
10. If you already have a baccalaureate college degree, ask about an accelerated or second degree program. It might not take as long as you think! Several nursing education programs in VA offer second degree programs. A complete listed of programs approved to operate in Virginia can be found on the Virginia Board of Nursing website at https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/nursing/nursing_edprogs.htm

We hope this information is helpful. Best wishes as you embark on your nursing career.